
  
www.region2planning.com/lenawee-county-planning-commission 

 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING NOTICE 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION, CONTACT: 
Grant E. Bauman 
R2PC Principal Planner 
(517) 768-6711 
gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us 

DATE: September 16, 2021 

TIME: 6:30 p.m. 

PLACE: Lenawee Room |Human Services Bldg. 
 1040 S. Winter Street 
 Adrian, Michigan 

MEETING AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Public Comment [3-MINUTE LIMIT] 

3. Approval of Agenda [ACTION] 

4. Meeting Minutes 

Approval of the Minutes of the August 19, 2021, Meeting [ACTION]  ................................................  3 

5. Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s) 

(1) #21-12 — Madison Township [ACTION]  ........................................................................  7 

(2) #21-13 — Deerfield Township [ACTION]  .....................................................................  19 

(3) #21-14 — Cambridge Township [ACTION]  ...................................................................  23 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s) 

(1) #21-17 — Blissfield Township [ACTION]  ......................................................................  35 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s) — None 

6. Other Business 

a. Old Business — None 
b. New Business — None 

 

7. Public Comment [2 MINUTE LIMIT] 

8. Commissioner Comment 

9. Adjournment 

 

 

Please note that the meeting will take place in person. 
The location is the Lenawee Room of the Human Services Building (1040 S. Winter Street). 

 

The next meeting of the Lenawee County Planning Commission is scheduled for October 21, 2021 

 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #1 

mailto:gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us


This page is intentionally blank. 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #2 



  
www.region2planning.com/lenawee-county-planning-commission 

 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, August 19, 2021 

Lenawee Room ● Lenawee County Human Services Building ● Adrian, Michigan 

 Members Present: Ms. Karol (KZ) Bolton, Lenawee County Commission; Mr. Keith Dersham, LCPC 
Secretary; Mr. Bruce Nickel; Mr. Ralph Tillotson, Lenawee County Commission; 
and Mr. Dale Witt 

 Members Absent: Ms. Rebecca Liedel, LCPC Chair 

 Others Present: Mr. Grant Bauman, LCPC Staff/Recording Secretary. 

Item 1 Call to order. Secretary Dersham called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. Those in attend-
ance joined in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Item 2 Public comment. None. 

Item 3 Approval of Agenda. Staff submitted the 08/19/2021 meeting agenda for approval. 

Comm. Tillotson made a motion, seconded by Comm. Nickel, to approve the July 15, 2021, 
meeting agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 4 Approval of Minutes. Staff submitted the 07/15/2021 meeting minutes for approval. 

Comm. Bolton made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to approve the July 15, 2021, meet-
ing minutes as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 5 Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s). 

(1) #21-07 | Madison Township. Commissioners reviewed the proposed zoning ordi-

nance text amendments artisan, farmers, and flea markets. Staff summarized his re-
port advising Commissioners to recommend approval with comments of the pro-
posed text amendments (see the staff report). 

Comm. Bolton made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur with the staff ad-
visement to recommend approval with comments of the proposed text amendments 
regarding artisan, farmers, and flea markets to the Madison Township Board (see the 
staff report). The motion passed unanimously. 

(2) #21-08 | Madison Township. Commissioners reviewed the proposed zoning ordi-

nance text amendments regarding temporary uses. Staff summarized his report ad-
vising Commissioners to recommend approval with comments of the proposed text 
amendments (see the staff report). 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #3 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
August 19, 2021, Meeting Minutes Page 2  
 

Comm. Nickel made a motion, seconded by Comm. Bolton, to recommend approval 
with comments of the proposed text amendment regarding temporary uses to the 
Madison Township Board (see the staff report). The motion passed unanimously. 

(3) #21-09 | Rollin Township. Commissioners reviewed the proposed rezoning of a por-

tion of the subject property (RL0-104-2650-00) from Commercial Recreation (CR) 
back to Manufactured Housing Park (MHP). Staff summarized his report advising 
Commissioners to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning (see the staff re-
port). 

Comm. Bolton made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur with the staff ad-
visement to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning of a portion of the sub-
ject property (RL0-104-2650-00) back to Manufactured Housing Park (MHP) to the 
Rollin Township Board. The motion passed by majority vote with Comm. Nickel ab-
staining (he is employed by Rollin Township). 

(4) #21-10 | Woodstock Township. Commissioners reviewed the proposed rezoning of a 

portion of the subject property (WD0-117-3600-00) from Commercial Recreation 
(CR) back to Manufactured Housing Park (MHP). Staff summarized his report advising 
Commissioners to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning (see the staff re-
port). 

Comm. Tillotson made a motion, seconded by Comm. Nickel, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning of a portion of the 
subject property (WD0-117-3600-00) back to Manufactured Housing Park (MHP) to 
the Woodstock Township Board. The motion passed unanimously. 

(5) #21-11 | Raisin Township. Commissioners reviewed the proposed rezoning of the 

subject property (RA0-104-1500-00) from Agricultural (A-1) to Local Commercial (C-
1). Staff summarized his report advising Commissioners to recommend approval of 
the proposed rezoning (see the staff report). 

Comm. Nickel made a motion, seconded by Comm. Bolton, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning of the subject prop-
erty (RA0-104-1500-00) to Local Commercial (C-1) to the Raisin Township Board. The 
motion passed by majority vote with Comm. Witt abstaining (he serves on the Raisin 
Township Planning Commission). 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s). 

(1) #21-08 | Franklin Township. Commissioners reviewed an application for a 40.3-acre 

parcel (ID #FR0-135-4800-00) located in Section 35 (T5S-R3E) of the Township. Staff 
summarized his memo and advised them to recommend approval with comments of 
the agreement (see the staff report). 

Comm. Tillotson made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 agreement to the 
Franklin Township Board (see the staff report). The motion passed unanimously. 

(2) #21-09 | Franklin Township. Commissioners reviewed an application for a 70-acre 

parcel (ID #FR0-131-3555-00) located in Section 31 (T5S-R3E) of the Township. Staff 
summarized his memo and advised them to recommend approval with comments of 
the agreement (see the staff report). 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #4 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
August 19, 2021, Meeting Minutes Page 3  
 

Comm. Tillotson made a motion, seconded by Comm. Bolton, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 agreement to the 
Franklin Township Board (see the staff report). The motion passed unanimously. 

(3) #21-10 | Franklin Township. Commissioners reviewed an application for a 113-acre 

parcel (ID #FR0-131-4700-00) located in Section 31 (T5S-R3E) of the Township. Staff 
summarized his memo and advised them to recommend approval with comments of 
the agreement (see the staff report). 

Comm. Bolton made a motion, seconded by Comm. Tillotson, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 agreement to the 
Franklin Township Board (see the staff report). The motion passed unanimously. 

(4) #21-11 | Seneca Township. Commissioners reviewed an application for 378.6 acres 

on 5 parcels (ID #SE0-128-1350-00, #SE0-128-2280-00, #SE0-128-2780-00, #SE0-128-
4600-00, and #SE0-129-4280-00) located in Sections 28 and 29 (T8S-R2E) of the 
Township. Staff summarized his memo and advised them to recommend approval 
with comments of the agreement (see the staff report). 

Comm. Tillotson made a motion, seconded by Comm. Bolton, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 agreement to the 
Seneca Township Board (see the staff report). The motion passed unanimously. 

(5) #21-12 | Seneca Township. Commissioners reviewed an application for 22.9 acres on 
1 parcel (ID #SE0-109-4780-00) located in Section 9 (T8S-R2E) of the Township. Staff 
summarized his memo and advised them to recommend approval with comments of 
the agreement (see the staff report). 

Comm. Bolton made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur with the staff ad-
visement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 agreement to the 
Seneca Township Board (see the staff report). The motion passed unanimously. 

(6) #21-13 | Seneca Township. Commissioners reviewed an application for 138.3 acres 

on 3 parcels (ID #SE0-133-2050-00, #SE0-133-2310-00, and #SE0-133-3250-00) lo-
cated in Section 33 (T8S-R2E) of the Township. Staff summarized his memo and ad-
vised them to recommend approval with comments of the agreement (see the staff 
report). 

Comm. Nickel made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur with the staff ad-
visement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 agreement to the 
Seneca Township Board (see the staff report). The motion passed unanimously. 

(7) #21-14 | Seneca Township. Commissioners reviewed an application for 93.4 acres on 

1 parcel (ID #SE0-117-3780-00) located in Section 17 (T8S-R2E) of the Township. Staff 
summarized his memo and advised them to recommend approval with comments of 
the agreement (see the staff report). 

Comm. Nickel made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur with the staff ad-
visement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 agreement to the 
Seneca Township Board (see the staff report). The motion passed unanimously. 

 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #5 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
August 19, 2021, Meeting Minutes Page 4  
 

(8) #21-15 | Seneca Township. Commissioners reviewed an application for 89.8 acres on 
2 parcels (ID #SE0-135-2055-00 and #SE0-135-2280-00) located in Section 35 (T8S-
R2E) of the Township. Staff summarized his memo and advised them to recommend 
approval with comments of the agreement (see the staff report). 

Comm. Bolton made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur with the staff ad-
visement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 agreement to the 
Seneca Township Board (see the staff report). The motion passed unanimously. 

(9) #21-16 | Seneca Township. Commissioners reviewed an application for 376.6 acres 

on 3 parcels (ID #SE0-121-2280-00, #SE0-121-4750-00, and #SE0-122-1050-00) lo-
cated in Sections 21 and 22 (T8S-R2E) of the Township. Staff summarized his memo 
and advised them to recommend approval with comments of the agreement (see the 
staff report). 

Comm. Nickel made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur with the staff ad-
visement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 agreement to the 
Seneca Township Board (see the staff report). The motion passed unanimously. 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s). None. 

Item 6 Other Business. 

a. Old Business. None. 

b. New Business. None. 

Item 7 Public Comment. None. 

Item 8 Commissioner Comment. None. 

Item 9 Adjournment. The meeting adjourned at 7:40 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Grant E. Bauman, LCPC Recording Secretary 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #6 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

Coordinated Zoning Report | #21-12 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: September 8, 2021 

 Proposal: The overlay rezoning of a property in Madison Charter Township 

Request 

The subject property is proposed for rezoning to a ‘medical marihuana facility overlay (MMFO)’ district, 
remaining in the ‘light industrial (I-1)’ district. 

Purpose 

The request will allow the applicant to grow medical marihuana. 

Location and Size of the Property 

Location – The subject property (MD0-101-4100-00) is located in Section 1 (T7S-R3E) of Madison Char-

ter Township, east of Adrian (see Figure 1). 

Size – The subject parcel has an area of approximately 5 acres. 

Land Use and Zoning 

Current Land Use – The subject property is assessed for ‘industrial’ uses according to property rec-

ords. Adjacent properties to the east along Taylor Avenue are assessed for ‘residential’ uses. 

Future Land Use – Madison Charter Township’s future land use map recommends ‘industrial’ uses in 

the general area (see Figure 2). 

Current Zoning – The subject parcel is already zoned ‘light industrial (I-1)’ (see Figure 3). 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

Public Road/Street Access –Maumee Street, a county primary roadway, provides access to the 

subject property. 

Public Water and Sewer – N/A. 

Environmental Constraints – N/A. 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation – The Madison Township Planning Com-

mission passed a motion to recommend denial of the zoning request; the proposed setback of 39 feet 
does not comply with the 50-foot setback requirement of the medical marihuana facility overlay district. 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #7 



Page 2 CZ #21-12 
 

LCPC Staff Analysis – The subject property is already zoned ‘light industrial (I-1)’ and an adjacent 

‘medical marihuana facility overlay (MMFO)’ district exists to the west. However, the Township pointed 
out that the 50-foot setback requirement in the ‘MMFO’ district 
will not be met. Rezoning the property would simply create a non-
conforming property. Based upon this analysis, staff advises the 
Lenawee County Planning Commission to recommend DISAP-
PROVAL of the proposed rezoning to ‘medical marihuana facility 
overlay (MMFO)’ of the subject property to the Madison Charter 
Township Board. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by Madison Charter Township. 

 
Figure 1 
Location 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

Recommended Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #8 



Page 3 CZ #21-12 
 

Figure 2 
Municipal Future Land Use 

 

Figure 3 
Municipal Zoning 

 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #9 



Page 4 CZ #21-12 
 

Figure 4 
USDA Aerial Photograph 

 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #10 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #11 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #12 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #13 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #14 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #15 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #16 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #17 



This page is intentionally blank. 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #18 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

Coordinated Zoning Report | #21-13 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman, Principal Planner 
 Date: September 8, 2021 

 Proposal: Text Amendments to the Deerfield Township Interim Zoning Ordinance regarding fire-

arms dealers as a home occupation 

Analysis and Advisement 

Background – Section 10.02(9) currently allows customary home occupations (e.g. hairdressing, milli-

nery, dressmaking, bookkeeping and accounting services, real estate and insurance sales, professional 
offices, etc.) as a permitted use in the Township’s Agricultural (AA) district. Those occupations must be 
incidental to the primary residential use of the property and are subject to other conditions. The pro-
posed amendment of Subsection (d) would expand the use to allow for the sale and transfer of guns by 
a licensed dealer as a type of home occupation in the AA district. 

LCPC Staff Analysis – The proposed amendment limits the number of on-site patrons to not more 

than 15 per day. It also requires a Type 01 Federal Firearms License (FFL) and prohibits the sale of fully 
automatic weapons, suppressors, silencers, etc. A copy of the FFL must be submitted to the Township 
Clerk. 

LCPC Staff Advisement – Based upon the above analysis, staff ad-

vises the County Planning Commission to recommend APPROVAL of 
the proposed text amendments to the Deerfield Township Board. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by the Township. 

 

Recommended Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #19 



LCPC Case #: _____-_____ 
(For LCPC Use Only) ZONING AMENDMENT FORM

LENAWEE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
(COORDINATING ZONING)

Return to: Lenawee County Planning Commission ∙ c/o Region 2 Planning Commission ∙ 120 W. Michigan Avenue ∙ Jackson, Michigan 49201 

Please submit the Planning Commission meeting minutes and any reports/exhibits the Commission used to makes its recommendation with this form. Use 
a separate form for each proposed zoning change. Please include a legal description/ survey with rezoning requests in addition to the Parcel ID Number. 

A copy of this form with the LCPC recommendation will be mailed back to the Clerk, who will return a copy to the LCPC with the Township Board Action. 

THE ______________________________ TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION submits the following proposed zoning change to the 
Lenawee County Planning Commission for its review, comment, and recommendation: 

(ANSWER EITHER A or B) 

A. DISTRICT BOUNDARY CHANGE (REZONING): 

(Provide the legal and popular property descriptions, the Parcel ID Number(s), the number of acres, and the section(s) in which the 
property is located. Attach additional sheets if more space is needed. Attach a map showing all changes and additions.) 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. The above described property has a proposed zoning change FROM  ____________________________________________________

ZONE TO  ___________________________________________________________  ZONE.

2. PURPOSE OF PROPOSED CHANGE:  ________________________________________________________________________________

 _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

B. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT: 

The following Article(s) and Section(s) is amended or altered:  ARTICLE  ______________________ SECTION  ____________________ 

The NEW SECTION reads as follows: (Attach additional sheets if more space is needed.)  ________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

C. PUBLIC HEARING on the above amendment was held on:    month __________    day __________    year __________ 

D. NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING was published/mailed on the following date:    month __________    day __________    year __________ 

(Notice must be provided at least fifteen days prior to the public hearing.) 

E. THE NEWSPAPER (having general circulation in Township) carrying the NOTICE: _____________________________________________ 

The PROPOSED ZONING AMENDMENT described herein was duly considered by the Township Planning Commission and will be 

forwarded to the Township Board with a recommendation to  APPROVE or  DISAPPROVE. 

________________________________________  Chair or  Secretary ______ / ______ / ______ (enter date) 

LENAWEE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION (LCPC) ACTION: 

1. Date of Meeting:    month _____________    day _____________    year ______________

2. The LCPC herewith certifies receipt of the proposed amendment on the above date and:

 Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change 

 Recommends DISAPPROVAL of the zoning change for the reasons stated in the attached letter. 

 Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change with comments, as stated in the attached letter. 

 Takes NO ACTION. 

________________________________________, Recording Secretary ______ / ______ / ______ (enter date) 

TOWNSHIP BOARD ACTION: 

1. Date of Meeting:    month _____________    day _____________    year ______________

2. The ____________________ Township Board herewith certifies that a legally constituted meeting held on the above date and that

the proposed amendment  PASSED,  DID NOT PASS, or was  REFERRED ANEW to the Township Planning Commission.

Township Clerk 
Revised: 11/19/18

X

X 8 23 21

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #20 

labdoo
Typewritten Text
Deerfield

labdoo
Typewritten Text
10.02(9)

labdoo
Typewritten Text
See attached

labdoo
Typewritten Text
N/A 

labdoo
Typewritten Text
(Interim Zoning Ord)



DEERFIELD TOWNSHIP 
LENAWEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND INTERIM ZONING ORDINANCE REGARDING 
FIREARMS DEALERS 

 

THE TOWNSHIP OF DEERFIELD ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Amendment of Section 10.02(9). 
 
 
The Deerfield Township Interim Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by adding regulations for 
firearms dealers as a home occupation in the AA district. Section 10.02(9) shall read, in its 
entirety, as follows: 
 

9. Home Occupations:  Customary home occupations such as hairdressing, 
millinery, dressmaking, bookkeeping and accounting services, real estate 
and insurance sales, professional offices for not more than one (1) 
physician, surgeon, dentist, attorney, architect, engineer, or similar 
professional practitioner provided that such home occupation shall satisfy 
the following conditions: 

a. The non-residential use shall be only incidental to the primary residential 
use of the property. 

b. No home occupation shall be permitted which is injurious to the general 
character of the agricultural district and which creates a hazardous or 
unhealthy condition. 

c. For the purpose of this provision, principal and accessory farm operations 
shall not be considered home occupations. 

d. Retail gun sales and transfers shall be permitted as a Home Occupation 
in the AA district provided that such sales/transfers do not include 
weapons and/or accessories regulated under the National Firearm Act, 
26 USC Chapter 53 (fully automatic weapons, suppressors, silencers, 
etc), do  not involve more than fifteen (15) on-site patrons per day, and 
the homeowner has received and is maintaining a Type 01 Federal 
Firearms License (FFL) pursuant to the Gun Control Act of 1968. Prior to 
commencing retail sales and transfers as a Home Occupation, the 
homeowner shall furnish a copy of their FFL to the Deerfield Township 
Clerk and shall immediately inform the Township Clerk of any change in 
license status.  

 
 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #21 



 
Section 2.   Severability.  The various parts, sections and clauses of this Ordinance are 
hereby declared to be severable.  If any part, sentence, paragraph, section or clause is 
adjudged unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the 
ordinance shall not be affected thereby. 
 
Section 3.   Effective Date.  The Township Clerk shall cause a notice of adoption of this 
Ordinance to be published.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 
publication.   

 

 

YEAS:              

NAYS:              

ABSTAIN:             

ABSENT:             

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
This true and complete copy of Ordinance No. ____ was declared adopted at a Meeting of the 
Deerfield Township Board held on ____________, 2021, public notice of said meeting was 
given pursuant to MCL 125.3401(2) of the Zoning Enabling Act, Public Act 110 of 2006, as the 
same may be amended. 

 
       
Township Supervisor 
 
 
       
_____________________, Township Clerk 
 

 

86308:00001:5679740-1 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #22 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

Coordinated Zoning Report | #21-14 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman, Principal Planner 
 Date: September 8, 2021 

 Proposal: Text Amendments to the Cambridge Township Zoning Ordinance regarding Barn Event 

Venues 

Analysis and Advisement 

Background – Cambridge Township proposes to allow barn event venues (i.e., wedding barns). A defi-

nition for the new use is provided and the new use would be allowed as a conditional use in the Town-
ship’s Agricultural (AG-1) District. Regulations pertaining to the operation of barn event venues are also 
proposed. 

The regulations allow for events in an existing building on a minimum 10-acre parcel. The business own-
ers must live on the property (with some exceptions). Food and beverage services must be catered (no 
commercial kitchens). Events can only occur April through October (with some exceptions) on Fridays, 
Saturdays, and Sundays, with limited hours. Attendance is limited to not more than 200 attendees. 

The number of required parking spaces is established by the existing parking regulations. Event parking 
can take place on grass as long as it is dust and mud free (with some exceptions). Regulations are codi-
fied for lighting, temporary structures, signage, toilets and lavatory facilities, and trash and refuse. 

A responsible party must be named as a contact for the Township in case there are complaints. Auxiliary 
structures are limited to a total of 1,200 square feet. Compliance with building codes, health codes, etc. 
is required. Insurance is also required, indemnifying the Township. 

LCPC Staff Analysis – The proposed amendments appear to be 

very comprehensive. LCPC staff had the opportunity to discuss his 
concerns with the Township Attorney, resulting in various correc-
tions. 

LCPC Staff Advisement – Based upon the above analysis, staff ad-

vises the County Planning Commission to recommend APPROVAL of 
the proposed text amendments to the Cambridge Township Board. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by the Township. 

 

Recommended Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #23 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #24 

gbauman
Typewriter
35-5, 36-99(2)w, 36-420



 

Page 1 of 7 
 

Township of Cambridge 

County of Lenawee, State of Michigan  

Ordinance No. ___ 

 

An Ordinance to amend the Cambridge Township Zoning Ordinance and the Code of 

Ordinances, Chapter 36 to add the definition of a Barn Event Venue, to provide for Barn Event 

Venue as a conditional use in an Agricultural (AG-1) District and to specify the minimum 

standards by which an application for such Conditional use will be evaluated by the Cambridge 

Township Planning Commission and the Township Board 

 

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS 

 

Chapter 36, Article I Sec 35-5, Sec. 36-5. - Definitions.   

Barn Event Venue means the use of an existing building originally constructed for agricultural 

uses, and made available on a lease or rental basis as a venue for events which are open on an 

invitation only basis, such as weddings, receptions, birthday or anniversary parties, graduation 

open houses, or bridal or baby showers.  And which shall be a conditional use in the AG-1 

Districts subject to the standards set forth in Chapter 36, Article IV, Division 5 and Division 7 

 

SECTION 2. CONDITIONAL USE IN AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 

 

Chapter 36, Article III, Division 2, Section 36-99. – Agricultural District (AG). 

 

 (2) Conditional Uses. 

 

w. Barn Event Venue subject to the provisions of Ch. 36, Art. IV, Div. 5, Sub II, 

Sec. 36-420. 

 

SECTION 3. SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS 

 

Chapter 36, Article IV, Division 5, Sec. 36-420. Barn Event Venues 

 

Purpose. The purpose of this section is to allow for productive and desirable use of buildings 

which were originally constructed for agricultural purposes, but are no longer being used for 

those purposes. The preservation of such buildings has a public benefit to the Township in 

maintaining rural character and the agricultural tradition of the Township. In addition, while 

location on an operating farm is not required, adaptation of farm buildings can enhance and 

financially support existing farm operations for the benefit of the rural character and promotion 

of agriculture within the Township.  

 

(A) Application. In addition to a site plan as required in Article IV-Supplemental 

Regulations, Div.7-Site Plan Review and Approval, and other application materials 

required by this ordinance, an application for a barn event venue shall include the 

following:   

(1) A narrative describing the plan for the operation of the business, including types of 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #25 



 

Page 2 of 7 
 

events, catering, alcohol service, proposed days and hours of operation, supervision 

by responsible parties, and other information necessary or useful to demonstrate 

compliance with the intent and purposes of this conditional use and the 

requirements imposed herein.   

(2) A written report by a qualified engineer, architect or builder stating at least a 

preliminary conclusion that the building proposed is in compliance with all 

applicable building, electrical, mechanical and structural requirements applicable 

to a place of public assembly.   

(3) Written confirmation from the Lenawee County Road Commission that a 

commercial driveway permit can be issued to provide access to the venue and 

parking area.  

(4) Requirements. In addition to the general requirements for conditional use approval, 

the following specific requirements apply to a barn event venue:   

(a) Existing Building. The building proposed as the barn event venue shall have 

originally been constructed for farming or agricultural purposes. This does not 

prevent remodeling or reinforcement of an existing building, or the construction of 

accessory buildings in support of the main venue, as permitted herein. 

(b) Minimum Parcel Size. The barn event venue shall be located on a parcel of 

no less than 10 acres. The Planning Commission may modify the minimum acreage 

requirement for a particular use upon a finding that the use is compatible with 

adjacent or nearby properties and may be conducted in compliance with the other 

standards in the ordinance on less than 10 acres. The size and capacity of the 

buildings, parking area, and sanitation facilities shall be capable of safely handling 

the events on the property.   

(c) Operation by Occupants. The person who operates the barn event venue 

shall have a primary residence on the property. This is not intended to prevent the 

use of caterers or others to perform functions under the supervision of the operator 

of the business. The Planning Commission may modify this requirement in cases 

where it determines that the applicant/operator lives in the vicinity and the applicant 

establishes that the property will be closely monitored during all events, in a manner 

substantially the equivalent as oversight by a person living on the property. To 

assure continued compliance with this provision, notification of all transfers of 

property associated with a barn event venue conditional use shall be given to the 

Township zoning administrator 30 days prior to any such land transfer.   

(d) Food and Beverage Service. Food and beverage service shall be provided 

by caterers, and not at a full-scale kitchen on the premises. Alcohol service is 

permitted by licensed caterers in compliance with the Michigan Liquor Control 

Code. This is not intended to prevent installation of warming, storage, cooling or 

other equipment to assist the caterers in their operation.   

(e) Seasons and Timing of Events. Events shall conform to the following 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #26 



 

Page 3 of 7 
 

schedule:   

(i) Events shall be held only during the months of April through 

October.   

(ii) Events shall be held only on Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays.   

(iii) All events on Fridays and Saturdays shall be completed by 11:00 

p.m., and guests shall vacate the premises by that time. Any cleanup activity 

shall be completed no later than 48 hours after an event. Alcohol service 

shall be concluded not later than 10:00 p.m. Any events held on Sundays 

shall conclude by 5:00 p.m. The Planning Commission may impose more 

restrictive days and hours of operation if appropriate to protect neighboring 

properties or land use.   

(iv) With prior approval of the zoning administrator (who may defer to 

the Planning Commission), and subject any additional reasonable 

restrictions as may be imposed, up to three additional events per year may 

be permitted at an approved barn event venue outside the period identified 

in (A)(4)(e)(i) above. 

(5) Attendees. The maximum number of attendees shall be not more than 200, or such 

lesser number specified by the Planning Commission, subject to the further 

limitation of the maximum capacity of the buildings as permitted by the Michigan 

Building Code, the Cambridge Township Fire Department, and available parking. 

The Planning Commission may also impose supplemental restrictions, such as a 

limit prohibiting more than one event with an attendance greater than a specified 

number of persons in any weekend, or limiting the number of events in a weekend.   

(6) Amplified Music. Any speakers for amplified music or announcements shall be 

permitted only inside a fully enclosed building or structure. Amplified music may 

not be played later than 10:00 p.m. and shall comply with Township noise 

requirements (Chapter 36, Article IV, Division 9, Sec. 36-548 (1).  

(7) Parking. Off-street parking shall be provided as shown on the site plan submitted 

with the conditional use application. The minimum number of spaces shall be as 

provided in Chapter 36, Article IV, Division 3 for places of assembly without fixed 

seats. The Planning Commission may impose a maximum number of permitted 

vehicles, and shall require appropriate screening, fencing or other landscaping, and 

shall prohibit the parking of vehicles within a specified distance from the right-of-

way line of adjacent streets and provide other regulations to assure that vehicles are 

arranged in a safe manner, consistent with neighboring lands and uses. Any 

temporary banners, sawhorses, cones or other devices used to mark parking areas 

and direct traffic will be installed no more than 48 hours before an event and 

removed no later than 48 hours after an event. No parking whatsoever shall occur 

on public roads, even if permitted by Road Commission regulations, and violation 

of this requirement shall constitute grounds for revocation of the conditional use 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #27 



 

Page 4 of 7 
 

permit.   

(8) Parking Surface. Barn event venue parking areas may have a grass surface if 

maintained in a dust and mud free condition. For more permanent parking, Chapter 

36, Article IV, Division 3 shall control, except that the Planning Commission may 

grant a parking modification with respect to the amount of parking area required to 

be paved, and allow (or require) parking on gravel, crushed concrete, grass, and 

similar areas, upon finding that paved parking would result in unnecessary amounts 

of paved parking area for the particular needs of the proposed use and that adequate 

parking for the business on non-paved areas as clearly designated on the site plan, 

is safe, and is compatible with adjacent or nearby properties. Dust and mud 

conditions shall, in all events, be controlled and avoided.   

(9) Lighting. Small lantern lights not over eight feet above ground may be used to 

supplement existing lights. Additional exterior lighting shall only be in compliance 

with the zoning ordinance and shall require the approval of the Township zoning 

administrator. No lighting shall shine onto adjacent properties. Supplemental 

exterior lighting shall only be used during scheduled events.   

(10) Temporary Structures. Any tent or other temporary structure which is constructed 

in addition to the existing buildings and structures, so as to accommodate an event, 

shall be installed no more than 48 hours before an event and shall be dismantled 

and removed no more than 48 hours after an event.   

(11) Signage. One permanent sign shall be permitted in the same manner as allowed for 

permitted non-residential uses in the district. Temporary signage providing 

additional identification of the location and parking areas may be used on the day 

of the scheduled event.   

(12) Toilets and Lavatory facilities. Toilets and lavatory facilities shall be provided in 

accordance with the Michigan Building Code and applicable health department 

regulations, including handicap accessibility when required, but in no event shall 

less than two separate toilets and lavatory facilities be provided. The applicant may 

use portable facilities which, if used, shall be located as shown on the site plan.   

(13) Trash and Refuse. All trash and refuse resulting from events will be removed by 

the event sponsor or caterer no later than 48 hours after an event. A dumpster or 

similar commercial trash receptacle may be located on the property as long as it is 

concealed from view from the road.  

(14) Responsible Party. The property owner shall maintain responsibility for operations 

at the site. The applicant shall designate to the Township a responsible party, with 

cellular and other phone contact, who is one of the owners or residents of the 

property, as a contact in case there are problems during the course of an event. The 

contact person shall at all times be available on the property during an event or shall 

designate to the Township the person who shall be at the site, available by phone 

and responsible (in addition to the named property owner) during an event. As a 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #28 



 

Page 5 of 7 
 

condition of conditional land use approval, the property owner shall be responsible 

for compliance with the conditions of this conditional land use approval, regardless 

of whether violations are actually committed by employees, contractors, guests or 

others.   

(15) Setback Requirements. All buildings and structures on the site shall conform to the 

minimum setback requirements of the district in which it is located, unless the 

Planning Commission imposes a greater setback requirement.  

(16) Traffic Control and Security. If necessary to ensure that traffic entering or exiting 

the property moves promptly and safely into and out of the parking area, personnel 

shall be supplied by the property owner to direct traffic.  Also, security personnel 

shall be provided by the property owner to the extent necessary to ensure good order 

and safety are maintained during all events.   

(17) Auxiliary Structures. It is the intention of this section that significant additional 

buildings generally not be constructed to support the barn event venue. Auxiliary 

structures connected with the barn event venue, such as gazebos, pavilions and 

restroom facilities, may be constructed as shown on the site plan. Auxiliary 

structures constructed to support the barn event venue shall not exceed a total area 

of 1,200 square feet. 

(18) Noise. A barn event venue business, and all uses, events, programs or activities 

connected with the business, shall not create, assist in creating, continue or permit 

the continuation of any excessive or unnecessarily loud disturbances.   

(19) Compliance with Laws and Regulations; Permits and Insurance. All required 

federal, state, county and local permits for each use, event, program or activity, 

shall be secured and maintained by the applicant, including but not limited to the 

following:   

(a) Buildings, including but not limited to barns, shall not be used in the 

business until documentation is provided to the Township from a certified 

architect or engineer that the building so used is structurally sound and safe 

for the proposed activity. In addition, all buildings used in the business shall 

be inspected by and shall pass inspection by the Township building and 

electrical inspectors for all proposed uses of the building for the business.   

(b) Food provided for the business shall be prepared offsite by a licensed caterer 

in accordance with Lenawee County Health Department. Alcoholic 

beverages shall not be provided unless the provider secures and maintains 

an appropriate license from the Michigan Liquor Control Commission.   

(d) Lenawee County Road Commission driveway permits are necessary for 

ingress and egress from the site.   

(e) All buildings and structures shall be kept in compliance with applicable 

building and construction codes.   

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #29 



 

Page 6 of 7 
 

20) Insurance Coverage.  A valid certificate of public liability and property damage 

insurance covering all barn venue activities shall be provided with minimum 

liability limits of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and $3,000,000.00 aggregate. Such 

policy shall name as additional insured Cambridge Township (the “Indemnified 

Parties”). 

(21) Additional Requirements. The Township zoning administrator shall be expressly 

authorized to impose additional conditions and limitations upon the operation of 

the business concerning traffic, traffic patterns, parking arrangements, noises and 

disturbances and other operational aspects based on experience with the operation.   

(22) Violations. Violation of the conditions of an approving resolution for a conditional 

land use under this subpart shall constitute a violation of the Township Zoning 

Ordinance. Repeated or serious violations of the conditions of the approving 

resolution are grounds for revocation of the conditional land use, following notice 

and public hearing by the Planning Commission. The requirements of this section 

shall be incorporated into the approving resolution for the conditional land use and 

compliance herewith shall be a continued requirement for operation of the 

conditional land use.  

SECTION 4: SEVERABILITY 

The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable and if any part is declared 

invalid for any reason by a court of competent jurisdiction it shall not affect the remainder of the 

Ordinance which shall continue in full force and effect. 

 

SECTION 5: REPEAL 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed.  

SECTION 6: EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon publication as required by law following 

adoption by the Cambridge Township Board. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #30 



 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This ordinance was offered for adoption by the Township Board Member ____________ and 

was seconded by Township Board Member ___________________, the vote being as follows: 

YEAS:  (_) 

NAYS:  (  ) 

ABSENT:  (  ) 

ORDINANCE DECLARED ADOPTED ON _________________. 

 

____________________________ 

William Gentner 

Township Supervisor for  

Cambridge Township 

 

 

CERTIFICATION OF ADOPTION AND PUBLICATION 

I, Annette Roesch, the duly elected Township Clerk, certify that the foregoing ordinance was 

properly enacted by the township board of the Cambridge Township, Lenawee County, Michigan 

on ___________, 2021, and that it was published in the _________________ on 

_____________________, 2021. 

 

________________________ 

Annette Roesch 

Township Clerk for  

Cambridge Township 

 

 

 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #31 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #32 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #33 



This page is intentionally blank. 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #34 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

PA 116 FARMLAND AGREEMENT | FA #21-17 
 Applicant(s): Maurice J. Denecker Living Trust and 

Jean A. Denecker Living Trust 
12792 East US-223 
Riga, MI 49276 

 Date: September 8, 2021 

 Local Government: Blissfield Township 

 Purpose: Enrollment application 

 Location: The subject property (ID #BL0-234-3775-00) is located on the north side of 
Stadler Road, between Riga and Tagsold Highways, in Section 34 of the Township 
(T7S, R5E) (see Figure 1). 

 Description: The subject property has an area of approximately 14.44 acres. The average 
gross annual income is approximately $600, well above the minimum $200/acre 
required by MDARD (the Michigan Department of Agriculture and Rural Develop-
ment) for parcels under 40 acres. The property contains no buildings. 

 Term: 29 years. 

 Future Land Use: The Lenawee County Comprehensive Land Use Plan places the subject property at 
the edge of an area recommended for ‘intensive agricultural’ uses (see Figure 2). 

 Staff Comments: The applicants should consider/address the following errors/omissions included 
in the application: 

 Question #15. Indicate that the applicant is a trust. 

 Appraisal Record. A copy of the most recent appraisal record for the property 
should be attached to the application. 

Staff Advisement: Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Lenawee County Planning Commis-
sion to recommend APPROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the PA 116 application to 
the Blissfield Township Board, provided the applicant considers the comments/ 
suggestions listed in the staff report. 

  It should be noted that this is a resubmittal of an application (FA#21-02) for 30 
years already recommended for approval with comments by the Lenawee 
County Planning Commission on January 21, 2021. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by the applicant/township. 

  

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #35 



Page 2 FA | #21-17 
 

Figure 1 
Location 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 2 
County Future Land Use 

 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #36 



Page 3 FA | #21-17 
 

Figure 3 
USDA Aerial Photograph 

 
 

9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #37 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #38 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #39 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #40 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #41 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #42 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #43 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #44 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #45 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #46 



9/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #47 


